
 
Argyll and Bute Council 
Comhairle Earra Ghaidheal agus Bhoid 

 

Customer Services 
Executive Director:  Douglas Hendry 

 
Kilmory, Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT 

Tel:  01546 602127  Fax:  01546 604435 
DX 599700 LOCHGILPHEAD 

e.mail –douglas.hendry@argyll-bute.gov.uk 
 

27 May 2014 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
A meeting of the SHORT LIFE WORKING GROUP - OUR ISLANDS: OUR FUTURE will be held 
in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, KILMORY, LOCHGILPHEAD on MONDAY, 2 JUNE 2014 at 3:15 
PM, which you are requested to attend. 
 
 

Douglas Hendry 
Executive Director - Customer Services 

 

 
BUSINESS 

 
 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
 2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (IF ANY)  

 
 3. MINUTES 
  Short Life Working Group: Our Islands, Our Future – 13 May 2014 (Pages 1 - 4) 

 

SHORT LIFE WORKING GROUP – OUR ISLANDS: OUR FUTURE 
 
 Councillor Len Scoullar (Chair) Councillor Robin Currie
 Councillor Mary-Jean Devon Councillor Anne Horn
 Councillor Duncan MacIntyre Councillor Robert Macintyre
 Councillor Isobel Strong 
    
 
 Contact: Hazel MacInnes  Tel:  01546 604269 
 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 
MINUTES of MEETING of SHORT LIFE WORKING GROUP - OUR ISLANDS: OUR FUTURE 

held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, KILMORY, LOCHGILPHEAD  
on TUESDAY, 13 MAY 2014  

 
 

Present: Councillor Len Scoullar (Chair) 
 

 Councillor Robin Currie 
Councillor Anne Horn 
 

Councillor Duncan MacIntyre 
Councillor Isobel Strong 
 

Attending: Charles Reppke, Head of Governance and Law 
Audrey Martin,  Projects and Renewables Manager 
Fergus Murray, Head of Economic Development  
Patricia O’Neill, Central Governance Manager 

Also Present: Councillor Dick Walsh – for item 3 only  
 

 
 The Chair ruled and the Short Life Working Group Agreed to take an urgent 

item: Update from Council  Leader on discussions at a national level in respect 
of island issues ahead of item 3 Minutes on the published agenda.  
 
 

 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
  Apologies for absence were intimated on behalf of Councillor Mary Jean 

Devon and Councillor Robert E MacIntyre. 
 

 2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
  No declarations of interest were intimated.  

 
 3. UPDATE FROM COUNCIL LEADER 
   The Council Leader provided an update on discussions at Cosla and with 

the Minister for Local Government and Planning. The Council Leader 
advised that a number of discussions have taken place in respect of how 
other Councils such as Argyll and Bute, Highland, and North Ayrshire 
could benefit from the Three Islands Partnership developments. The 
Minister was keen to hear more about the particular issues facing island 
communities within Argyll and Bute such as depopulation and expressed 
an interest in meeting to discuss this further. This would be taken forward 
in conjunction with the Chief Executive and the Leader would intend to 
extend any such invitation to meet to the SLWG. The Leader advised that 
the initial discussions had been positive and he was optimistic that the 
discussions would continue to move forward. 
 

The Short Life Working Group undertook a discussion regarding the 
Three Islands Partnership. The Group noted that while it was important 
that while we benefit from this initiative and any associated package of 
measures that our key focus should be on the tasks and activities to best 
benefit our islands. The Short Life Working Group considered the 
possibility of looking at the outcomes set out in the Single Outcome 
Agreement and agreed to look at how best to “island proof” these without 
the need for a separate plan but to ensure island issues were addressed 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



within the delivery plans. 
 
Discussion took place on the information collated by the Economic 
Development Team through a range of discussions with island 
communities and it was noted this information would provide a helpful 
basis for discussions with the Minister. 
 
The Chair thanked the leader on behalf of the Short Life Working Group 
for providing an update on the discussions with Cosla and at a ministerial 
level.  
 
Decision  
 
The Short Life Working Group noted the update from the Leader and 
agreed that it is a positive step forward.  
 
The Short Life Working Group agreed to give further consideration to 
“island proofing” the SOA and associated delivery plans and a matrix of 
island issues would be developed for the next meeting. 
 
 

 4. MINUTES 
   The Minutes of the meeting of the Short Life Working Group Our Islands: 

Our Future were approved as a correct record subject to the following 
amendments -  
 
Under item 4, Our Islands: Our Future – add in an additional decision: 
 
5. Agree to invite the leader of the Western Isles Council to a future 
meeting of the Short Life Working Group.  
 
 

 5. CHANGE OF NAME OF SHORT LIFE WORKING GROUP 
   The Short Life Working Group discussed the possibility of changing the 

name of the Short Life Working Group. 
 
Decision  
 
The Short Life Working Group agreed to make a recommendation to 
Council that the name of the Short Life Working Group be changed to 
Argyll Islands Task Force Short Life Working Group.  
 
 

 6. PRESS RELEASE 
  In response to a question on public response to the Press Release 

Elected Members indicated that they had not received any feedback as 
yet however it was noted that the establishment of the group was already 
known and it was still early days.  
 

The Group participated in a discussion regarding the purpose of this Short 
Life Working Group and how important it is that the Group achieves the 
goals which it sets out.  
 

Page 2



Charles Reppke advised that the Group could look at creating an overall 
objective which the Council would deliver but additionally look at smaller 
scale objectives which the Short Life Working Group could make happen 
themselves or by influencing other people in order for change to occur. 
The Short Life Working Group agreed that this was a good approach so 
people can see that the Group is actively trying to make a difference as 
opposed to just discussion  on how they could make a difference.  
 
Fergus Murray advised that there is ongoing work that is being done to 
support the Islands however  this needed to be communicated more 
effectively.  
 
The Short Life Working Group agreed that it would be helpful to look at 
island success stories and identify why they are successful and then see 
if the causes of the success can be applied elsewhere. The Group noted 
that although it may seem that some Islands may appear to be a success, 
this might not be the underlying case and it is important to try and address 
any problems that they maybe facing.  
 
Decision  
 
The Short Life Working Group agreed to identify clear objectives as to 
what the Group wants to achieve and release further communication to 
the public once this has been identified.  
  
 

 7. OUR ISLANDS: ISSUES 
  Audrey Martin presented the matrix that she had been working on to the 

Group and explained that the aim of the matrix is to identify overarching 
Island issues and key issues that are specific to certain Islands. Audrey 
advised that she had received data which had been gathered during the 
Community Planning Partnership consultation events that had recently 
taken place. Audrey reported that Chris Carr had advised that it would be 
possible to break down the population statistics into demographics in 
order to try and help identify issues that the Islands are facing and the 
reasons as to why they are facing these issues. The Short Life Working 
Group agreed that the demographics of an Islands population would be 
an important consideration and a discussion was held on this. 
 
The Short Life Working Group undertook a discussion on how ferry 
reliability was affecting the Islands and how in some instances this was 
deterring people from living on the Island as it was having a negative 
impact on their ability to undertake work on the mainland. The Group 
noted that the matrix contains information regarding Ferry Costs, Capacity 
and links to other methods of transport however requested that an 
additional column headed Ferry Reliability be added.  
 
Decision  
 
The Short Life Working Group agreed that: 
 

1. Fergus Murray and Audrey Martin would bring back a report 
setting out proposed priorities and objectives for the Short Life 

Page 3



Working Group to discuss which would then form the basis of a 
future report to Council with recommendations for approval 

2. The next meeting of the Short life Working Group will be held in 
the afternoon of 2 June 2014.  

 
 
 

 8. OTHER PARTNER COUNCILS 
   In response to a discussion on working with other Partners and Councils 

with regards to lobbying on behalf of island communities outwith the 
Three Islands Partnership it was agreed that Fergus Murray should make 
an informal approach to North Ayrshire Council and Highland Council  to 
gain an understanding of their views on these matters.  
 
Decision  
 
The Short Life Working Group agreed that Fergus Murray would speak to 
the Head of Economic Development at North Ayrshire Council and 
Highland Council and report back to the group at the next meeting.  
 
 

Page 4



 

Press Release 
 

 

23 May 2014 

 

Islands Task Force meet with Minister for Local Government 

Argyll and Bute Council’s Islands Task Force had an extremely positive meeting with 
the Minister for Local Government, Derek Mackay MSP, in Rothesay on Tuesday 20 
May to discuss the future of our islands. 

Mr Mackay revealed that the Scottish Government will be producing a prospectus for 
all of Scotland’s islands by the end of June which will provide a toolbox that 
communities can draw on that is right for their island’s circumstances. 

He said: “I was grateful to attend discussions in Bute with the council leadership and 
the islands task force. 

“It is important to get this input into decision-making directly from island communities 
to complement and inform the ground-breaking work of the Island Areas Ministerial 
Working Group. 

“The First Minister’s Lerwick Declaration last July affirmed our commitment to 
subsidiarity and local decision-making.   

“Our hard work with islands partners towards an islands prospectus this summer 
demonstrates this commitment.’’ 

Leader of the Council, Councillor Dick Walsh, said of the meeting: ‘’It was a very 
positive meeting - the needs of our islands are being considered at national 
government level.  

‘’We are working to bring focus to the particular challenges of Argyll’s islands 

‘’Bute is the first island the minister has visited to gather information to help develop 
the government’s island prospectus, which is very pleasing for us.  

‘’This is good news - any change in legislation at national level will reflect the needs 
of Argyll’s islands.’’ 

The task force has considered a number of overarching issues facing our islands 
that require early action including: digital connectivity; economic development; local 
responsibility for local resources; marketing and promotion; development of 

Agenda Item 6Page 5



community renewables projects; healthcare provision; grid connection; transport 
links and access to public services 

These broad general themes have formed a benchmark from which the council is 
developing an issues framework to inform future discussions.  

These discussions will look to drill down in to the issues, identifying concerns for our 
islands as a whole, as well as particular issues for individual islands.  

Chair of the task force, Bute-based Councillor Len Scoullar, said: ‘’The key to 
developing a successful future for our islands is not just to understand what the 
problems are but to have a full appreciation of what is driving these particular 
problems 

‘’Population decline is an issue across Argyll and Bute, both on the mainland and on 
the islands and arresting that decline is the key focus of our Single Outcome 
Agreement (SOA), which seeks to grow our population through economic success. 
In these coming months we will be looking to ‘island proof’ the SOA and focus on the 
attractions of our islands.’’ 

The task force will be working with key partners such the Scottish Islands Federation 
(SIF), NHS Highland and Highlands and Islands Enterprise (HIE) to explore the key 
issues affecting our island communities as well as working to establish relationships 
with Highland and North Ayrshire councils, who also have islands within their council 
areas.  

The local authority is already taking action to benefit our islands through the SOA 
key outcomes such as the provision of superfast broadband, increasing mobile 
phone coverage, developing links between different community projects, improving 
local peoples’ skills, the provision of affordable housing, regeneration initiatives such 
as the Townscape Heritage Initiative in Rothesay, improvements to airports and ferry 
terminals and supporting the SMILEGOV initiative.  

Notes to editors 

Members of the task force are:           

• Cllr Len Scoullar (Chair) 

• Cllr Robin Currie 

• Cllr Mary Jean Devon 

• Cllr Anne Horn 

• Cllr Duncan MacIntyre 

• Cllr Robert E MacIntyre 

• Cllr Isobel Strong 

In 2011, 17.1% of Argyll and Bute’s total population (15,105) were usually resident 
on islands. This compares to a figure of 17.4% in 2011 (15,889). The island 
population fell by over 5% in this period. 

Page 6



Over the same period Scotland’s total island population increased by 4%. 

According to the 2011 census there are 23 inhabited islands in Argyll and Bute. 

 

 

  

Documents 

• Derek Mackay visit - courtesy of The Buteman.jpg 

  
Unsubscribe. 

 

 

[#RL-2224:635364476521034208#]  

 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	6 MEETING WITH MINISTER FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT, DEREK MACKAY MSP

